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PLEASE NOTE
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
people should be aware that this
report may contain images or names of
deceased persons.
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Message
from the
Chairperson
Lisa Mumbin

A big thank you to everyone;
staff, Management and Board
members who played a part in the
betterment of our organisation and
our people in 2019-2020!
The Wurli Wurlinjang Board of Directors welcomed
three new Directors during 2019-2020, we welcomed
Evonne Booth and Michael Murrimal representing
Binjari Community who commenced in August 2019,
and Barbara Berto representing Katherine Township
who commenced in February 2020. We look forward
to your continued contributions to this Board.
Sadly, our organisation lost a much loved, committed
and well respected member of our Board in
November 2019, Director Hayes, who sadly passed
away. We were fortunate to have his valued input
on this Board of Directors for 10 years and we truly
thank Mr Hayes for all he did for this Organisation
and this Board during his continued term in office as
a representative of Katherine Township. He always
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maintained his passion and drive for support services
for Men’s health and wellbeing in our Region as well
as for our homeless population. You are sorely missed
Mr Hayes.
In November 2019, we held our Annual General
Meeting where we attempted to pass changes to our
Wurli Rule Book however due to a small technicality
we were rejected by the Office of the Registrar of
Indigenous Corporations (ORIC). This however did
not deter us and in March 2020 we held a Special
General Meeting were we tabled the same proposed
changes. All members present accepted and endorsed
those changes which were approved by ORIC and the
changes took effect as of the 31st March 2020. These
changes meant that our Board representation went

Wurli Board of Directors as of June 2020.
Missing five directors.

from 16 Directors to 14 Directors and we no longer have
representation from Jodetluk and Geyulkgan Ngurro
communities. Our Board would like to acknowledge
and thank all the previous Directors who represented
these communities over the years.
This year with the global pandemic, Coronavirus
(COVID-19), we had to change the way our meetings
and gatherings were conducted in particular due
to social distancing, limitations on gatherings and
hygiene practices. The Board acknowledges all the
efforts of all Wurli employees and Wurli Management
Team for their due diligence in their preparedness for
COVID-19 and bringing about continued community
awareness by way of community meetings, information
posters and brochures, Facebook posts, local radio

“On behalf of the Board of Directors,
thank you to all staff members who
continued and still continue to come
to work to keep our services running
for our people.”
advertising and one-on-one and group education
sessions. On behalf of the Board of Directors, thank
you to all staff members who continued and still
continue to come to work to keep our services running
for our people.

5

Message
from the
CEO
Suzi Berto

The 2019-20 year has been
challenging as we worked through
unprecedented times to minimise the
impact of the Coronavirus on both our
communities and in our workplace.
Although the exceptional circumstances created by the global pandemic
generated its challenges, it did not prevent Wurli from progressing and
achieving some remarkable milestones during 2019-20. One noteworthy
milestone being that this is the first year in Wurli’s history we have
welcomed a dentist to the team. A Wurli-based dental team has been a
goal for well over five years as affordable and timely oral health care for
our clients has been difficult to source. This year we achieved that goal
which will aid in producing invaluable improved health outcomes for our
people.

“Wurli’s
dedication to
continuous quality
improvement did
not pause or wane
during 2019-20...”

Wurli’s dedication to continuous quality improvement did not pause or
wane during 2019-20 either. Significant progress has been made on
achieving the recommendations set out by the Community Services and
Clinical Services internal reviews conducted in previous years with the
benefit of improved holistic client directed care being received by our
clients daily. With such positive results being achieved in our client-facing
departments as a result of these internal reviews, this year we embarked
on another internal review; this time on our financial systems with the
aim of exploring improved processes and financial governance. As with
previous reviews, Wurli has engaged the expertise of external consultants
to guide our path towards best practice. I would like to thank all of our
consultants and contractors for their support during this year. Wurli’s
aspirations could not be achieved without your involvement.
Forward planning to ensure Wurli continues to provide the scope and
breadth of services and supports our community demands has remained
a priority during this year. Sufficient safe, accessible and fit-for-purpose
infrastructure for our growing service to operate from is hard to obtain.
But our team has worked tirelessly this year to secure funding for various
important infrastructure projects.
Infrastructure projects delivered this financial year include:
• Renovation of two staff rooms at Main Clinic
• Internal and external painting of Main Clinic
• New vinyl flooring at Main Clinic
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Infrastructure projects with funding secured for
delivery next financial year include:

To my Board, thank you also for another year of
devotion and perseverance.

• Extension at Main Clinic for new Community
Pharmacy and Office
• Establishment of new on-site car park and
vehicle safety improvements in between Main
Clinic and Women and Children’s Clinic
• Relocation of ANFPP program into new offices
at the rear of Women and Children’s Clinic
• Renovation of three bathrooms at Main Clinic
• Security upgrades of five consult rooms at Main
Clinic
• Relocation of our Outreach and Syphilis
Enhanced Response teams to a Crawford
Street address that is also suitable for clinical
consult use during flood events
• Relocation of StrongBala Justice Support and
StrongBala Men’s Clinic to Kintore Street
• Refurbishment of newly purchased property on
Fourth Street.
The majority of these projects have been and will
be funded by the Australian Government. I would
like to thank all of our funding providers, whether
they be Commonwealth, NTG or NGOs, for their
contributions and supports through-out this year.
Wurli’s program and project delivery would not be
possible without our funders.

This year we have been saddened by the passing of
one of our longstanding Directors. Mr Hayes was a
true gentleman who displayed pride and integrity in
all his work at Wurli. Mr Hayes was always the first
to volunteer to represent Wurli at meetings or when
working alongside researchers. He was our strongest
advocate for the StrongBala Justice Program and
will be missed by us, the Wurli team and many of our
clients. This year we also celebrated; our very own
Chairperson was awarded the Order of Australia
Medal. Congratulations Lisa Mumbin!
Our Board have a busy year ahead with the renewal
of our Strategic Plan, our Enterprise Agreement and
Governance Training on the agenda. I look forward to
providing an update on these tasks next year.
As Wurli continues to work towards improving the
health of our people, I invite our young people to join
us on this journey. Wurli wants you to take the lead in
improving the health and wellbeing of our people. We
have career and leadership opportunities available to
you where you can truly make a difference for not only
yourself but for your family, your community and for
Countrymen. Join the Wurli team today.
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1. Introduction

Board members checking out the
new clinical van and getting their
flu vaccinations.
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1.1 Organisational Overview
Wurli Wurlinjang Health Service (Wurli)
is an Aboriginal Community Controlled
Organisation delivering a growing range of
primary health care and community services
to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people
living in Katherine and within a 40 kilometre
radius. Wurli has its origins in the Kalano
Health Service which was established in the
early 1980s. Today, Wurli has a combined
client population of approximately 5,000
people and delivers almost 36,000 episodes of
care annually and employs approximately 110
staff members.
Wurli’s Clinical Services division employs
General Practitioners, Registered Aboriginal
Health Practitioners, Registered Nurses,
Registered Midwives, a Dentist and other
clinical specialists and allied health
professionals to deliver holistic and chronic
condition care. The clinical division also houses
Wurli’s Health Promotions Unit.
Wurli’s Community Services division delivers
mental health, wellbeing, counselling and
support services including dual diagnosis

counselling, AOD counselling, support
services for those experiencing family violence,
support services for men engaged with
correctional services, support services for those
experiencing homelessness and community
engagement and education programs.
To aid in the cultural competence and
accessibility of Wurli’s services, Wurli provides
transportation and community liaison services,
offers many programs via an outreach model,
operates and after-hours clinic and can
arrange for interpretive services.
Wurli has been operating in the Katherine
Region for almost 40 years. The organisation’s
longevity is a result of Wurli’s sound
organisational reputation with clients
and funding providers as well as it strong
governance, financial, human resource, grant
and project management capabilities. Wurli
anticipates further expansion of service
delivery to work towards Closing the Gap
in the years to come.
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1.2 Governance
As an Aboriginal community-controlled organisation, Wurli is governed by a Board of Directors elected by
members of the Wurli Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation living in Katherine and surrounding community
living areas. Elections are held every three years. During 2019-20, our Board of Directors consisted of:
Myalli Brumby Community (Kalano)

Lisa Mumbin
Chairperson

Noel McDonald
Senior

Gary Manbulloo
Senior

Juanita Heparia

Pauline Marapunya

Melissa Rogers

Jason Brown

Marie Dowling

Ruby Stanley

Mr Hayes

Barbara Berto

(Ceased 13th Nov 2019)

(Commenced 21st Feb 2020)

Rockhole Community

Natasha Bronghur

Katherine Township

May Rosas

Binjari Community

Jodetluk Community Geyulkgan Ngurro Community

Evonne Booth

Michael Murrimal

(Commenced 22 Aug 2019)

(Commenced 22 Aug 2019)

Maylene Frederick
(Ceased 23rd Aug 2019)

Frank Douglas
(Ceased 23rd Aug 2019)

Jodetluk and Geyulkgan Ngurro representation on the Wurli
Wurlinjang Board of Directors ceased as of the 31st March 2020.
Wurli would like to thank all past Directors from these communities
for their commitment and their valued input into this organisation.
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1.3 Vision and Values
Our Vision
To move forward as one, to heal our people and improve our health.

Our Values
Our values lie underneath all our work. They are the rock on which we build Wurli-Wurlinjang,
and help us turn our vision into reality. Our values are:
•
•
•
•

To build respect for our elders and our culture;
To empower people to take responsibility for their health;
To ensure good governance and take responsibility for our organisation;
To recognise the diversity among Aboriginal people in Katherine, and the importance of
a variety of approaches;
• To understand and acknowledge that health and healing is not only a job for health
professionals but for everyone;
• To foster respect between Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal people; and
• Strive to achieve equitable health outcomes for all clients.

1.4 Quality Statement
Wurli-Wurlinjang Health Service (Wurli) aims to provide the highest standard of client care
to the Aboriginal people living in the Katherine town and the surrounding communities of
Rockhole, Mialli Brumby, Geyulkgan Ngurro, Jodetluk and Binjari.
Wurli will adopt a holistic approach to the prevention, early health screening, diagnosis and management
of illnesses. Wurli will strive to deliver high quality comprehensive primary health care services that
continually meet or exceed our clients’ expectations. Wurli will seek to achieve our aims by:
•
•
•
•

Providing culturally appropriate and accessible services to Aboriginal people;
Delivering evidence-based clinical and primary health care practices;
Ensuring communities and individuals are involved in the decision making process;
Establishing and maintaining formal agreements or understanding with other key
health and related organisations;
• Ensuring good systems are in place to support effective and efficient use of
resources; and
• Induction and orientation, training and development, and performance
reviews of workplace participants.
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2. Service
Delivery
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2.1 Out and About with Wurli

The AOD School Engagemnt T-shirt competition winners (July 2019).

JULY 2019
• The AOD School Engagement T-shirt
Competition winners were announced after
staff spent the previous seven months engaging
with all schools in Katherine about the effects of
drugs and alcohol use as well as self-care and
wellbeing. The three winners had their T-shirt
designs, which included messages around
reducing harm from alcohol and other drugs,
printed and were made available for young
people and community members that engaged
in the school sessions and those in the future.
• The StrongBala Justice program clients and
staff participated in the NAIDOC week Footy
match against the Kalano Bombers Football
Club. During the week they also attended the
Rocky Ridge and Kalano Aged Care morning
tea with clients.

AUGUST 2019
• Wurli hosted our annual Seniors Day event
at the Rocky Ridge Aged Care Facilities. The
event included arts and craft activities and the
Elders were able to enjoy cultural singing and
dancing by Wurli Director May Rosas and her
grandchildren.

SEPTEMBER 2019
• Community Services and Clinical Services
combined to host an R U OK Day promotion
and awareness event at the 50 cent park and
provided a BBQ meal to those who attended.

OCTOBER 2019
• The Community Services team hosted multiple
events during Mental Health Week with a key
focus of bringing awareness to the importance
of caring for your mental health and wellbeing.
They concluded the week with a big BBQ
breakfast for clients, staff and interested
local organisations. The event provided the
opportunity to get more information out about
our services.

DECEMBER 2019
• Wurli hosted our annual Elders Christmas
Lunch at our Community Services boardroom
and the elders were all waited on by staff
members and enjoyed a beautiful Christmas
feast. Many laughs and stories were shared by
all.
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Director Gary Manbulloo painting during
the Elders healing day.

FEBRUARY 2020
• Wurli’s new Exercise Physiologist Rhiannon Keith (who
commenced in Sep 2019) has been conducting exercise sessions
with Venndale clients on a weekly basis encouraging them to stay
fit and healthy. She works with other Wurli programs to provide
our clients with education and specialised advice to support their
healthy lifestyle and exercise needs. This has been a welcoming
new service to our organisation and clients.

MARCH 2020
• Wurli and Banatjarl Strongbala Wimun’s Grup join together to
host and Elder’s Healing day before the COVID-19 restrictions
came into place. They enjoyed making bush medicine, yarning
and art and craft activities.

JUNE 2020
Community members at a COVID-19
community meeting at Rockhole.
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• Wurli conducted more community meetings at Rockhole, Kalano,
and Binjari to bring about more awareness on COVID-19, the
potential risks to our people and our communities and what they
should do if a case came to Katherine.

2.2 Guidance of Service Delivery
To ensure Wurli is reaching its vision, all activities and programs undertaken by Wurli business
units are guided by the six strategic goals identified in the 2016-21 Strategic Plan.
The six goals are:

1

3

Expand our physical
infrastructure, to better
meet the need of increased
health service delivery.

2

Develop an appropriate
balance between the
attention we pay to acute care
needs, on one hand, and longerterm planned care needs,
on the other.

Continue to build the
human resource and
workforce capacity of
Wurli-Wurlinjang.

4

Recognise that a key
component in improving
Aboriginal health is to address
the social determinants of
health, including population
health, and that advocacy on
these social determinants is a
core function of
Wurli-Wurlinjang.

6

5

Develop a focus on
services relating to family
and individual wellbeing
and mental health, utilising
the strengths inherent in
Aboriginal culture.

Develop and strengthen
partnerships with other
service providers, understanding
that collaboration at the local,
regional, Territory and national
level underpins efforts to close
the gap in Aboriginal Health.
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2.3 Clinical
Services
2

5

6

2.3.1 Message from the Primary Health
Care Leadership Team, Megan Cope,
Senior Medical Officer
This last year has been memorable in many ways. Preparing and
planning for COVID-19, while pivotal, has not been the only
significant event or public health crisis.
Clinical teams across the service have made
significant contributions to many primary and public
health issues. These include but are not limited to the
persistent endemic high rates of anaemia in children
under the age of five; the ongoing epidemic of Syphilis
in the NT; the early recognition of acute rheumatic
fever and provision of follow up care; the increasing
need for diverse modes of care for clients with mental
illness; the increasing burden of chronic conditions
such as diabetes, heart disease and kidney disease
which are starting in children as young as nine; and
the increase in need for services to be delivered in the
home or institutional setting for palliative care, aged
care and disability sectors.
Against this background is the ongoing disparity in life
expectancy for Aboriginal people living in Katherine.
Our staff have provided care to many families who
have lost loved ones well before their time. The grief
is enormous and significantly impacts on the ability of
people to engage with health changing behaviours.
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The journey for change is thus deeply complex. It
requires an understanding of the individual as well
as the family and community environment. It involves
aspects of a person’s life where control is limited. As
health clinicians we can create spaces for clients to tell
their broader health stories; we can show initiative to
respond to health concerns, we can be empathic and
non-judgemental, and above all we can advocate
for changes beyond the control of the client. We can
also have input into health resource allocation and
flexible models of care.
Of mention here is the progression of Wurli’s dental
clinic from building and equipment to recruitment
of a dentist; the employment of an exercise
physiologist to improve access to lifestyle coaching
and more; the ongoing commitment to support
an in-house pharmacist to provide comprehensive
medication safety and compliance for clients and
the organisation; and the employment of a health
promotions coordinator to assist with our ability to
broaden health beyond the clinical sphere.

Peter Gazey, the Primary Health Care Systems
Manager (PHCSM), Trevor Pilon, the Primary
Health Care Operations Manager (PHCOM) and
myself commenced work as a Primary Health Care
Leadership team in October 2019.
We have been impressed with the engagement of
clinical staff in their daily work tasks as well as the
broader aspects of care that underpin Wurli as an
Aboriginal Health Service. We thank you all for
pulling through the rapid changes that have emerged
during COVID-19. We would also like to thank the
Board and CEO for guiding and supporting our
leadership this year. The challenges have been
enormous and the support has been necessary.
We would also like to thank our many health
partner organisations including NT Government,
Commonwealth Government, NT Primary Health
Network, NT General Practice Education and Iron
Pharmacy Group.
We thank all clinical coordinators and managers for
their program contributions to this Annual Report.

Below is a timeline of additional significant processes
to which the Primary Health Care Leadership team
has committed time.

JULY 2019
• New financial year with new budget planning

AUGUST 2019
• AMSANT celebrates 25 Years! Wurli staff
and Board Directors present at AMSANT
Conference in Alice Springs.
• Four staff trained as Communicare
Administrators. Aim to improve Communicare
versatility across the organisation, to improve
data management and ultimately improve
onsite training for new and existing staff.
• Coronial Inquiry into invasive pneumococcal
disease; a vaccine preventable illness.
Highlights the challenging changes in the
adult pneumococcal vaccination schedules.
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Rhiannon Keith, Wurli’s first Exercise Physiologist/
lifestyle coach teaching exercises to some mothers.

Primary Health Care Systems Manager Peter Gazey at
one of the COVID-19 community sessions at Kalano.

SEPTEMBER 2019
• Recruitment and welcome to Rhiannon Keith,
Wurli’s first Exercise Physiologist/lifestyle
coach.
• AGPAL reaccreditation for 3 years. Main Clinic
and Gudbinji.

DECEMBER 2019
• Commitment by Wurli in conjunction with Iron
Pharmacy Group to independently support the
ongoing funding of a Pharmacist at Wurli after
the completion of the IPAC trial.

JANUARY 2020
OCTOBER 2019
• Organisational restructure. Primary Health
Care Leadership Team formed. Dr Megan
Cope as Senior Medical Officer, Peter Gazey
as Primary Health Care Systems Manager,
and Trevor Pilon as Primary Health Care
Operations Manager.

NOVEMBER 2019
• Formation of the Clinical Leadership Group to
review and make recommendations from the
2018 Clinical Audit Actions with the aim to
improve health pathways. This group includes
Clinical Coordinators, Clinical Managers and
GPs.
• Wurli recognised as a Training Post Finalist in
the NTGPE Training Awards.
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• Recruitment and welcome to four new
Aboriginal Health Practitioner trainees - Luke
Ellis, Emily Rosas, Nora Tyson and Amanda
Abbott.

FEBRUARY 2020
• Recruitment and welcome to the new Health
Promotions Coordinator.
• AMSED is established at Wurli. This online
training platform is accessible to all staff
to access accredited online professional
development training in the context of
Aboriginal Primary Health Care.
• Wurli ANFPP initiates a 5-month trial program
–birthing classes for pregnant Mums.
• Board approves the Hearing for Learning
Initiative, a Menzies program that will train
local Katherine Aboriginal people in basic ear
health care with the view to employment at
Wurli. This program will hopefully commence
late 2020.

Community members and Wurli staff at the Binjari
community COVID-19 information session.

MARCH 2020
COVID 19 planning and preparation commences.
1. Community consultations.
2. Comprehensive contingency plan developed.
3. Waiting rooms moved outside.
4. Education for staff and clients regarding hand
hygiene, safe social/physical distancing and
public health directives.

APRIL 2020

MAY 2020
• Territory Kidney Care Project approved by the
Board. MOU development and establishment
of data tool collection. This project will assist
with improved care outcomes for people living
with kidney disease.

JUNE 2020
• Recruitment and welcome to Wurli’s first ever
Dental Practitioner.
• Formation of Wurli’s COVID-19 Rapid
Response Team.

COVID-19
1. Telephone consultations become available
backed up by Medicare Items and a procedure
in line with RACGP/ACCRM standards of care.
2. Staff training in infection control.
3. Vulnerable groups and clients and staff
identified.
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2.3.2 Main Clinic Report

2

Main Clinic provides acute and general care for our Katherine residents and many regional visitors.
Wurli Wurlinjang Main Clinic is a walk in service and
provides the opportunity to book an appointment
with a General Practioner from 8:30 to 11:30am
and 1:00 to 3:30pm Monday, Tuesday, Thursday
and Friday while on Wednesdays the clinic is open
8:30am to 11:00am.
The multi-disciplinary team consists of three
rotating General Practioners, four to five Registered
Aboriginal Health Practitioners and a Registered
Nurse delivering safe, high-quality patient care.
These services include health promotion, education
and cultural brokerage in accordance with Wurli
Wurlinjang Health Service Policy and procedures
while being guided by the CARPA standard treatment
manual and applicable legislation and regulations.
The key functions of Main Clinic include:
• Triaging of clients for acute and general care
in-house and prioritising urgent referrals to
Katherine Hospital.
• Referring clients to our Strongbala Men’s
Clinic, Women and Children’s Clinic, Gudbinji
Chronic Conditions Clinic and other program
areas.
• Rostered staff provide a fortnightly service
to clients at Venndale Rehabilitation Centre
30km south of Katherine.

• Provision of Allied Health services including
NT Hearing and Optometrist and in the near
future will have access to the Dentist.
Main Clinic is ISO and AGPAL accredited. We deliver
our services in a culturally safe and effective manner.
We focus on treating acute illness, immunisations,
flu vaccines for all ages, contributing to chronic
condition management and managing emergencies
as it presents. Promoting and encouraging healthy
lifestyles, quitting smoking and referrals to other
programs and external providers are all managed
from Main Clinic.
Renovations
During the 2019-2020 year, many renovations
occurred at Main Clinic. The Main Clinic front door
entrance is now a non-touch sliding door. There is
new vinyl flooring placed throughout the clinic and
we boast a new staff kitchen.
As part of the COVID-19 plan the patient waiting
room has changed to allow social distancing, chairs
were relocated outside and hand hygiene stations
placed at the front entrance.

Episodes of care — Main Clinic

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
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2.3.3 StrongBala Men’s Health Clinic Report

2

StrongBala Men’s Health Clinic is staffed by Registered
Aboriginal Health Practioners, Registered Nurses
and General Practioners providing a comprehensive
health program able to work with men to improve
their health outcomes in a culturally safe environment.
Our StrongBala Program works with all the programs
within Wurli be it Allied Health, Community Services
and Health Promotions to provide smooth seamless
comprehensive service.
StrongBala staff are involved in providing outreach
services to the Clontarf program in the schools. This
enables Wurli to engage with a younger demographic
of clients enabling them to stay strong and make
good choices for the future. This service is provided by
General Practioners and Registered Aboriginal Health
Practioners.
StrongBala Men’s Health commenced in 2009 and
provides primary health care services to men in a
culturally safe manner in line with Wurli’s core values of:
1. Building respect for elders and our culture,
2. Empowering people to take responsibility for their
health; and,
3. Striving to achieve equitable health outcomes for
all clients.

There are Aboriginal women’s laws and men’s laws,
and it is important for the men to have a place to come
to feel safe to discuss many matters both physical and
cultural.
As with all programs within Wurli, StrongBala
attendances have been impacted on by COVID-19
however we see this as an opportunity to refocus our
efforts in the next reporting period.
As the below graph indicates, the episodes of health care
for males falls well below those for females. StrongBala
Men’s Health Clinic seeks to reduce this gap.

Trend of episodes of health care for Aboriginal
clients by sex and reporting year
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2.3.4 Women’s and Children’s Clinic Report

2

6

Our Women’s and Children’s program commenced 2019-2020 with big plans however the pandemic
presented unprecedented challenges.
With the imminent threat of COVID-19 now over,
the Women’s and Children’s clinic welcomes a
Paediatrician every month for two days while the
Obstetrician from Katherine Hospital provides
monthly case conferencing regarding all ladies
having babies. These services are invaluable for our
clients.

have responded well to this and our immunisation
statistics remain above the national average.

In the last six months of last year there were 27
babies born to current Wurli clients while in the first
six months of this year there were 46 babies born.
Currently there is another 40 ladies still to have
babies this year or early 2021 which is slightly less
than in previous years.

With regards to Women’s Health an important
health check for all ladies aged 25 – 75 years is the
well women’s check now officially called a Cervical
Screening Test. This is one test that many women like
to avoid or delay but it really is an important test as
early detection of cervical cancer is so much easier
to treat than if not found for a long time. They only
need to be done every five years if normal so we really
would like all ladies who need this to come into our
Women’s clinic on Fridays.

The immunisation schedule changed this year with
the addition of another vaccination which is for
children up to the age of 23 months giving them
immunity to Meningococcal B. As usual parents

Anaemia remains to be the biggest health issue for
our children. The graph below however does show a
small decline in the number of anaemic children so
this is a positive sign we are hoping to continue to
improve on.

Results and testing frequency of aneamia in children
8/14/2020
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Wurli-Wurlinjang 15-month trend report 2019/20
Wurli - 15 Months Trend Report - 2019/20
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2.3.5 Gudbinj Chronic Conditions Clinic Report

2

6

Gudbinji Chronic Disease Clinic is located at 6 Kintore Street, Katherine South.
Gudbinji is AGPAL and ISO accredited. This
program area caters for clients diagnosed with one
or more chronic diseases including but not limited
to diabetes, rheumatic heart disease, ischemic
heart disease, respiratory disease, renal disease and
cancer. It aims to improve life expectancy and reduce
hospital admissions.
Service delivery includes health checks, health
promotion and education, care plans, team care
arrangements, case management of more complex
care needs, heath prevention such as immunisations,
chronic wound care and aged and disability care.
Underpinning care is the understanding that chronic
disease has significant morbidity and mortality and is
greatly affected by the social determinants of health.
A very important part of this program area is
building capacity for self-care. The Diabetes Day on
Thursdays is one example of a successful interactive
client-centred program.
Service delivery is enhanced by the delivery of
exercise physiology services as well as a number of
coordinated visiting services. These include specialists
and allied health professionals such as general
physicians, Cardiologists, Renal, Ophthalmology,
and Dermatology. It is further supported by visiting
allied health providers such as a Podiatrist, Cardiac
Educator and Dietician.
The Chronic Conditions Unit is also home to the
Integrated Care Team (ICT) program. This is a
culturally strong outreach program providing

coordinated case managed care to clients with a
chronic condition who do not or cannot engage in
other programs. It includes clients requiring palliative
care.
Staff employed in the Chronic Conditions program
include Registered Aboriginal Health Practitioners,
Registered Nurses, Diabetes Educator, Pharmacist,
General Practitioners, Exercise Physiologist and GP
Registrars.
This year, due to event of COVID-19, it has changed
the way specialist services have been delivered
across the Northern Territory. It has fast tracked
the introduction and usage of Telehealth services to
our clients by an ever increasing range of specialties
such as Oncology, Urology, Renal, cardiology,
Dermatology just a to name a few. This fast
tracking has provided some benefits for clients and
families such as not having to travel to Darwin for
consultations.
Gudbinji Clinic is the base for the after-hours
mobile van service provided to Wurli communities
Tuesday and Thursday evenings from 6 to 9 pm and
is the fixed-base After Hours Clinic from 6-9pm on
Wednesday evenings. These clinics allow us to take
health care to the communities as well as provided
consult hours where people who are unable to access
the service during the day can come. All Wurli clients
from children to the elderly can come and be seen.

After hours presentation numbers from 1st July 2019 to the 30th June 2020
Mobile Van
Gender

<5y

5-9yy

10-14y

15-54y

55-64y

>65

Total

Male

15

22

28

38

42

16

161

Female

25

31

33

46

47

26

314

Gender

<5y

5-9yy

10-14y

15-54y

55-64y

>65

Total

Female

26

34

18

234

79

71

397

Male

7

11

2

63

34

35

117

Gudbinji Clinic
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2.3.6 Wurli Wurlinjang Family Partnership Program Report
During the past 12 months the WWFPP team has remained
motivated and passionate about supporting young families
to be the best parents that they can be.
The program participants have continued to grow in
numbers. We have had over 15 new babies born in
this period.
Staff continue to witness the parents and babies
develop and learn new skills. The staff support the
new families to reach their goals. They do this by
focussing on the family’s strengths, focussing on
solutions, always remembering that you are the
expert in your own life, accepting that change
happens best in small steps and by supporting
families to follow their hearts desire.
The team are very proud of the achievements of
the families. Achievements such as getting drivers
licences, attending social groups (which they may
have been too shy to before), getting jobs and
quitting smoking or drinking have all been achieved
by program participants.
As the program develops and we become more
confident in delivering it we realise how lucky we are
to be working with such wonderful families and the
joy of sharing the ups and downs of parenting.

2

4

5

6

As we develop trusting relationships with the
families and support them to reach their goals we
get to see glimpses of how this program helps to
change people’s lives. Families that are supported
can achieve great things, we are working towards a
better future together.
Some of the things that the team have supported
families with include:
• Advocating for parents and supporting them
when working with Territory Families;
• Providing pregnancy and parenting support
and advice;
• Helping families to access housing support;
• Helping families to access financial support;
• Supporting families with healthcare;
• Helping families keep safe and free from
family violence; and,
• Supporting families to access social and
emotional wellbeing support.

Highlighted Event

The highlight of our year has been the graduation
of our first families from the program.
This means that the mum has enrolled in the program
during her pregnancy and worked with her nurse and
partnership worker for two and a half years. When the
baby turns two the family graduate from the program.
We had our first two graduates in June.
This was celebrated with a graduation ceremony,
certificates for mum dad and baby, a lovely speech by
Andrea and a cake to share with the other program
participants.
Nora Malay and Joey Sariago with baby Joharni
Sariago on their graduation day.
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The first graduates were couple Nora Malay & Joey
Sariago with baby Joharni Sariago and couple Jade
Collins & Patrick Weston with baby Khalani Weston.

We have continued to run group sessions where the
families have a chance to meet up for a chat and
enjoy a meal together while the little ones play.
The team have also secured ongoing funding to
provide antenatal classes at Wurli. The classes are
run by a midwife with the help of the WWFPP and
Women’s and Children’s teams.
The antenatal classes are targeted to Aboriginal
mums and any pregnant or interested woman can
attend. The classes are held fortnightly.
Key Achievements in 2019/20
The team welcomed a new Nurse Home Visitor to
the team, who has been able to apply her skills in
adolescent mental health to the program and is
working hard to build effective relationships with the
clients.
Staff report that their most valuable achievements
have been:
• Building strong relationships with families and
gaining client’s trust. When they reflect on how
quiet and shy some of the clients were when
they started and how they are now confident
and chatty.
• Witnessing the client’s personal growth in
parenting and improving their own lives.
• Walking with clients to help them reach their
goals such as quitting smoking, quitting
drinking or addressing family violence.
• Pride in the clients when they achieve goals
such as entering the workforce or study.
• Working as part of a supportive team who
all have the client’s and communities’ best
interests at heart.
The main goal for 2019-2020 was to continue to
develop the program and become confident and
competent in delivering it to clients.

The team work with other Wurli services to help
the clients to address health and wellbeing issues.
We also work with external services in order to
provide support to the clients and their families.
Often it is the social determinants of health that
need to be addressed. Issues such as overcrowding,
homelessness, low income, alcohol and drug use and
mental health problems all have major impacts on
our client’s health and wellbeing.

Our focus is on providing a culturally appropriate
service and the role of the Family Partnership Worker
is essential in ensuring that culture is central to
program delivery. We realised that team were unable
to provide the support to new Dads that is needed. In
order to address that we were able to employ a male
Family Partnership workers whose job is to engage
with the Dads.

We currently have 33 families participating in the
program, we have a capacity of 45.

Mum Deanna with baby Christian.

One of the biggest strengths of the program is that
we can act as advocates for our client’s and stand by
them through good and bad times.
We are grateful that Wurli is part of the Australian
Nurse Family Partnership Program and we are
committed to doing our bit to improve the health and
wellbeing of our clients.
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All Wurli staff at the front of Main Clinic.

International Women’s Day
celebration in March 2020, cake
made by Binjari Coordinator

The new interior flooring completed at Main Clinic.

Director Natasha Bronghur at Rockhole.
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WWFPP staff with client.

Wurli staff and Banatjarl women and kids.

Children playing in the clinic.

Aerial view of Rockhole community.

Demountable relocation at 25 Third St.

WWFPP staff with client and her baby.

Binjari members learning about COVID-19.
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2.3.7 Syphilis Enhanced Response Program Report
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Daniel Rosas and Preetpal Gill with the colourful tshirts available to clients who consent to a full STI check.

The Syphilis Enhanced Response Program (SER Program) was been established to combat the Top
End syphilis outbreak that began in the NT in 2013.
Since then the number of new syphilis cases has
increased significantly in the last seven years and
evidence has shown new cases of syphilis are
significantly higher in the ages 15-35. Due to the
nature of the program and common modes of
transmission, the SER program coordinates the
education, testing and treatment of other common
Sexually Transmitted Infections (STIs) such as
Chlamydia, Gonorrhoea, Trichomonas and others.
One of the ways the program seeks to address the
Syphilis outbreak is through the use of the Syphilis
Point of Care Tests (POCT). Members of the SER
Program carry out opportunistic Syphilis POC
Testing as well as train Wurli staff to perform the test
themselves in all of Wurli’s clinics.
The syphilis POCT is a quick and easy way to check if
someone has syphilis. This test only requires a small
sample of blood that can be taken from the finger
tips like a blood sugar test. After 15 minutes the test
will either show a Positive or Negative result.
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The SER Program is made up of one Coordinator,
two Registered Aboriginal Health Practioners and
two Community Engagement Support Officers.
The SER Program continues to engage with
multiple communities in the Katherine region such
as Myalli Brumby (Kalano), Rockhole Community,
Binjari, Jodetluk (Gorge Camp), Geyulkgan Ngurro
(Walpiri Camp) and the homeless population in
Katherine. We work alongside stakeholders such
as YMCA, Katherine High School STARS and
Clontarf programs, Katherine Flexible Learning and
Engagement Centre, Rise Ventures employment
agency and Venndale Rehabilitation Centre. We
recently have begun talks with Headspace Katherine
to deliver education and screening to young people
engaging the mental health service. Unfortunately
the impact of COVID-19 has meant that several of
our stakeholders are responsibly restricting visitors
thus limiting our ability to deliver education and
screening in those communities/areas.

2019-20 Highlighted Events
In September 2019 Syphilis Enhanced Response team
members attended the annual ASHM Australasian
Sexual Health Conference in Perth. 724 delegates
representing partner organisations from Australia
and New Zealand gathered to improve national and
local responses to sexual health issues. Our team
were part of a panel speaking of the importance of
culturally secure sexual health work in Indigenous
communities.
Program Area Report

Partly due to the impact of COVID-19 in 2020 we
have seen a 28% decrease in number of Syphilis Point
of Care tests performed. However, we have seen a
15% increase in the number of STI’s treated.
One of the ways the program is trying to increase STI
screening is by offering a polo shirt to those clients
that consent to a full STI check.
With continued efforts to educate, test and treat
members of our region we hope see the presence
of Syphilis and all Sexually Transmitted Infections
diminish further.

The past year has seen numbers of new cases of
Syphilis holding steady throughout the NT. Spikes
in numbers have been recorded in different areas at
times but overall numbers are plateauing. The town
of Katherine and nearby communities has seen a
decline in new cases, however, our highly transient
population means the risk of an escalation in new
cases remains high.
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2.3.8 Health Promotion Report
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Our Health Promotions program secured a Coordinator in late February 2020. Since
commencement, the Coordinator has been busy engaging with all Wurli programs and our
communities to re-establish the health promotions program across Wurli.
The goals for the five months from February until July
2020 were to begin to imbed evidence based health
promotion practice in all areas of service within
Wurli.
Training of both clinical and community services
staff has occurred on health promotion and the
social determinants of health and how Wurli can
influence some of these factors. This training and
continual communication continues to happen with
all staff at Wurli.
When COVID-19 started affecting us, we conducted
numerous community engagement sessions in
Rockhole, Myalli Brumby and Binjari communities
as well as in the Town Square to increase awareness
around the changing rules and what precautions
our clients needed to take to reduce their chances of
either catching or spreading COVID-19.
As restrictions started to ease we established an
Events Committee within Wurli involving both
clinical and community services staff to aim to
plan whole of Wurli health promotion events. This
committee has developed a planning process, trying
to increase staff participation and share the load
around running events.
The first major event we ran following restrictions
easing was Men’s Health Week. We ran three main
events during the week focusing on increased
screening of our groups of men who are less likely
to come into the clinic such as those sleeping rough
or young males who play sport and think they must
be young and healthy. We also promoted our AOD
and Wellbeing services and provided prevention
education. We worked alongside other organisations
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and community groups including The Salvation
Army Hub and Kalano Football Club.
In consultation with the Wurli Board and
Management, the Health Promotions Coordinator
has also established a social media presence for
Wurli by setting up our Facebook page. We continue
to update it with stories about upcoming events and
programs, health messages and images and stories
of things we have done with our clients. This initiative
has been received well within the community and is
receiving positive feedback.
Within health promotions we have our Exercise
Physiologist (EP), who is passionate about
encouraging people as well as Wurli staff to improve
their health through healthy eating and being active.
Our EP works with lots of groups in the community
including Venndale clients, Clontarf academy, some
of the WWFPP mums and StrongBala men and was
starting to establish a Heart Foundation Walking
Group prior to COVID-19. All of these groups and
programs have started up again as restrictions
eased. Our EP works both one on one and in group
environments with all types of people.
Not only does the health promotion team try to
promote healthy lifestyle to Wurli clients, we also
try to encourage staff in the same areas. This was
enhanced by beginning a staff workplace health
challenge in May 2020 providing healthy nutrition
and exercise tips weekly to encourage staff to eat
healthy and move more.
Our Health Promotion team looks forward to working
on more health promotion activities and events at
Wurli and in our communities into the future.

Men’s Health Week event involving Kalano Football Club.

Men’s Health Week, health information stalls

2.3.9 Binjari Health Centre Report
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Wurli continues to provide a comprehensive primary health service to the community of Binjari located
some 15klms from Katherine.
This community is served by a dedicated group of
clinician’s made up of General Practitioners, Registered
Aboriginal Health Practitioners, Registered Nurses,
Reception and Transport/Community Liaison staff.
Binjari Health receives a regular allied health service
of Podiatrist, Dietician, Exercise Physiologists,
Pharmacist, Diabetes Educator and Cardiac Educator
to further enhance the care to the community.
Transport is supplied to clients to attend outpatient
appointments both at Wurli and Katherine District
Hospital.

Further and ongoing work is being undertaken to align
the clinical notes under one system (Communicare).
This will allow better care and flexibility. Wurli has
been lucky to obtain some additional funding to allow
for the IT work for notes to be transferred from PCIS
to Communicare.
Work is also progressing on the relocation of the clinic
from the bottom camp to the top camp, which is where
housing is now centred.

AHKPI 1.1 - Episodes of Health Care and Client Contacts Total Denominator Community (%)

Episodes of
health care
2,851

Client
Contacts
3,234

Resident client
population
193
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2.4 Community
Services
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2.4.1 Message from the
General Business Manager, Darrell Brock
It could be suggested that the submission of my 2019/2020
Community Services (CS) annual report for this year should look
somewhat remarkably different to my previous reports given the
current situation and impact that COVID19 has had nationally
across Australia and here in the NT.
Over the second half of this financial year Wurli
has heeded expert advice and planned accordingly
to ensure that we had minimal disruption to our
service delivery in the Wurli Community Services
sector. Taking an innovative approach to the way
we navigate our CS programs operationally took on
some creative thinking and brought about positive
results whereby we could still produce outcomes
across all our CS program areas. Having a positive
team of health professionals that adapted to change
management permitted us to think outside the square
and implement new operational strategies to enable
the CS team to still engage with our clients during the
heightened restriction period.
The Wurli CS programs this year have all remained
on track with their individual operational plans also
acknowledging the enhanced benefits of continued
integration that permits for more positive outcomes
when addressing service provision needs for our
clients.
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Wurli CS has continued to focus on aligning itself
to the principals reflected in the National Strategic
Framework for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Peoples’ Mental Health and Social and Emotional
Wellbeing 2017-2023 and we continue to achieve this
by implementing culturally appropriate and responsive
service delivery which is evident across all our key
mental health program areas here in Wurli CS. We
have also endeavoured to recognise our core strategic
goals by continuing to deliver service provision which
is directly related to trauma informed social and
emotional well-being and mental health practice and
by having this targeted approach aligned to the way
we deliver services continues to be where we want
to strengthen our advocacy by acknowledging that
the intergenerational damage inflicted on our clients
is the direct result of colonial history which is then
also compounded by ongoing health issues that are
directly attributed to social determinants faced by our
indigenous clients every day.

Community Services hosted a morning tea for
Mental Health Week, October 2019.

This year Wurli CS have continued to produce some
positive key achievements which have been:
• Securing ongoing funding across all our Wurli
community services program areas for the next
few years and also attracting some additional
targeted funding specific to individual CS
programs areas.
• Our Katherine Individual Support Program
(KISP) was also successful in attracting an
additional 2 year funding through Dept. of
Health NTG. This permits the KISP program
to focus on improving the outcomes for that
target group of the indigenous community
experiencing homelessness and sleeping rough
here in Katherine. This funding was initially a
targeted pilot program which since its original
onset has produced significant outcomes for
clients whilst also identifying some unmet
challenges along this progression of program
development, the collaborative modelling
and unique wrap around service provision
has resulted in some evidence based positive

“Having a positive team
of health professionals
that adapted to change
managment permitted us to
think outside the square...”
outcomes for KISP clients and improved their
general physical and mental health wellbeing.
• Another key achievement has been aligned
to receiving some one off funding for Foetal
Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD). FASD
refers to lifelong physical and brain disorders
that can affect unborn and newborn babies
due to alcohol exposure during pregnancy. In
November 2018 the Honourable Minister for
Health, Greg Hunt, launched the National
FASD Strategic Action Plan which was
inclusive of $7 million in new funding to
support activities that align with the
Strategic Action Plan. Given such
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Elders Healing Day making bush medicine with Banatjarl StrongBala Wimun’s Group.

Wurli has been fortunate enough to attract
some of this funding to enable the Wurli
AOD program to provide FASD awareness
for our local indigenous communities. The
CS AOD team has already implemented
FASD education, information for CS front
line health staff and also for other keystakeholders also acknowledging that we
had three Wurli staff members access some
specialised FASD training over in QLD late last
year. This unique training opportunity permits
those staff members to implement FASD
assessments which here in the NT are very
difficult and challenging to complete given the
lack of trained professionals and the expenses
associated with the assessment process. So
it is envisaged that with this FASD funding
we will continue be able to engage in further
activities such as screening and diagnosis, also
supporting those clients and families impacted,
improve information, education and support
tools and proactively engage more in the
communities and schools to make a difference.
• Over the past twelve we have continued to
improve our CQI comprehensive care planning
initiative which has been a collaborative
effort by staff here in Wurli. Staff have
accessed ongoing PD in relation to navigating
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Communicare more efficiently, resulting in
improved documentation, accountability and
a more uniform client treatment pathway.
Continued improvements in the development
of specific Communicare templates have
also aided CS staff to have more practical
documenting platforms aligned to CS client
needs rather than generic clinic templates
resulting more efficient case management of
clients. Our annual auditing outcomes have
highlighted these improvements in client case
management which include such things as
the initial assessment, risk assessments and
ongoing review process. Having auditing tools
has permitted the program areas to have the
ability to validate how they are tracking with
program deliverables which then flows through
to ensuring program KPIs are constantly being
established.
Moving forward into 2020/2021 Wurli have
embarked on an extended funding bid to deliver
further specialized programs around addressing
DV towards indigenous women and children. The
funding initiative is a co design program with another
external stakeholder here in Katherine. Wurli may
have the opportunity to further expand its SJP and SIF
programs by implementing new program strategies

StrongBala Justice PDP session encouraging physical distancing.

directly related to addressing DV in indigenous
families, these will include a safe place for indigenous
women to seek support and also establish an
indigenous men’s behavioural group which comes will
have all the peripheral wrap around supports given
the trauma informed approach our programs focus
on. This funding opportunity will enable Wurli CS to
full fill the recognised gaps in our two program areas
that have not given us the opportunity to address
these needs in the past due to lack of the current staff
capacity and resources. So if we are successful with
this bid then it will be another opportunity for these
two program areas to further enhance their delivery
model to achieve outcomes sought.
We have continued with our outreach focus on health
prevention strategies, although the restrictions
put in place limited our ability to hold large group
events noting this was only for a limited timeframe.
Already the Wurli CS programs are implementing
further outreach activities for 2020/2021. Our
outreach service delivery adheres to safe practice
to prevent the spread of COVID19 and all our staff
are continually kept up to date and with all relevant
information. Having our Wurli health promotions
coordinator on board now gives the programs areas
a more structured and uniform tailored approach to
our health promotion activities/events.

Moving forward Wurli CS will continue to
demonstrate best practice service delivery across
all our individual programs and we will continue to
review our programs by implementing amendments
where warranted. Many of our clients accessing
services here in Wurli CS come with very complex and
challenging needs whether that be as individuals or as
families such as in our SIF program. We are wanting
to further deliver our holistic model of care based
on implementing a Trauma Informed Approach and
our engagement in recent times as seen such look at
overall organisational awareness and training for all
staff in Trauma Informed Care.
Wurli CS program areas continue to grow
acknowledging that over the past two years we have
expanded our mental health service provision which
is evidence that mental health and SEWB services
are very much sought after by to those clients. The
fact our clients are reaching out for support and that
Wurli has demonstrated its capacity to deliver these
services in a culturally and holistic manner means
we are on the right track. We will continue to remain
focused on our strategic direction in providing all
indigenous clients accessing services and continually
review and improve these services.
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2.4.2 Social and Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health Report
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SEWB and Mental Health support staff.

Social and Emotional Wellbeing (SEWB) Services continues to focus on providing culturally
appropriate counselling and support for local Aboriginals peoples of Katherine and the surrounding
communities.
The team primarily focuses on SEWB services that
include counselling, social support and structured
psychological therapy for a range of social and
emotional presentations.

By engaging clients in a holistic and culturally
sensitive way, the program aims at addressing social
determinates of health, which have far reaching
impacts on client’s emotional and physical wellbeing.

This section of Community Services provides
counselling and social support through the provision
of three funded programs.

The focus of these programs aligns with the Wurli
Strategic goals 2016-2021

• Social and Emotional Wellbeing - NIAA
• Mental Health Services in Rural and Remote
areas (MHSRRA) –NTPHN
• Social and Emotional Wellbeing Dual –
Diagnosis – NTPHN
These programs fall within the Social and Emotional
Wellbeing Framework, this framework is implemented
in a holistic way, with the utilisation of a culturally
appropriate and safe initial assessment tool.
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Goal 2 “Develop an appropriate balance between
the attention we pay to acute care needs, on the
one hand, and longer-term planned care needs, on
the other”.
The wellbeing programs have a strong focus on long
term therapeutic work, addressing initial acute care
needs and working to empower clients to develop
skills which will allow them to have control over their
wellbeing.

Client Contacts

Clients allocated to
Wellbeing Programs

Total
1,269 client
engagements
135 Counsellor

Mental
Health
42%

324 Social and Emotional
Wellbeing Staff

Social and
Emotional
Wellbeing
58%

463

Psychologist

Registered Nurse
66 (Mental Health)
350 Social
Worker

00
This occurs through collaborative working
partnerships between client and staff, development
of strong rapport, mutual relationships with other
community service organisation’s to allow freedom of
choice and access to resources.
This year has seen a member of the mental health
and SEWB team being trained in a Relational
Therapy Model (Conversational Therapy) which
was developed in part by an Australian Psychiatrist,
Russell Mears. It is proving to be a valuable asset to
the tool box of techniques used within the wellbeing
program.
A grant was received through the NT Primary Health
Network (PHN) and Rural Workforce Agency NT
for training. This has involved attendance at weekly
zoom supervision and seminars by psychiatrist
practitioners and highly experienced therapists from
a variety of therapeutic backgrounds. Anecdotally,
it appears to have resulted in improved quality and
access to primary health care counselling and SEWB
at community services.

300
300

600
600

900
900

1,200
1200

1,500
1500

Increased
understanding
of
relational
psychotherapeutic principals show promise for
increasing engagement and successful outcomes at
Wurli Community Services. A non-confrontational
and empathic approach may be culturally appropriate
for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander populations.
This is supported by the use of a conversational model
over the last year. This has increased engagement
and outcomes at the service delivery level at Wurli’s
Community Services.
The Model has been recently adapted for short
and medium length therapy. A recently completed
randomised clinical trial using the Conversational
Model was the largest such trial in the Southern
Hemisphere. Significant, repeated research has
shown reductions in self-harm, suicide attempts,
relationship breakdowns, and hospitalisations. The
most recent trial (2017) found the Model produces
beneficial effects and is a cost-effective treatment for
Complex Traumatic Stress Disorders.
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2.4.3 Katherine Individual Supoort Program (KISP) Report 4

5

KISP staff with Salvation Army Hub staff
during National Reconciliation Week.

The Katherine Individual Support Program (KISP)
was acknowledged for the positive outcomes and
continued service delivery the program has achieved
over the pilot period phase during 2018 - 2019 year.
With the high level of awareness, both locally and
nationally this enabled the
Program to secure a further 24 months extended
funding from the Northern Territory Government’s
Harm Minimisation Sector.
The KISP team has continued to facilitate the
Collaborative Case Management Group (CCMG)
meetings which has been a proven stronghold of the
programs operational service, this has developed
into creating strong operational relationships
with the external organisations of Katherine. KISP
have formulated memorandums of understanding
(MOU’s) with the Northern Territory Legal
Commission (Health Justice Partnership) which has
streamlined the access to legal representation of
the most vulnerable clients of Katherine who are
currently accessing KISP.
Being able to identify a client’s needs from a holistic
point of view has been beneficial with enabling the
client to access the appropriate services which are
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readily available, many of these being either directly
linked or including a form of legal representation
or information. Having a variety of professionals
attend these meetings has been vital to the success
of the service delivery.
The following organisations attended the CCMG
meetings in 2019-2020: Katherine District Hospital,
St Johns Ambulance, Catholic Care NT, Mission
Australia, Salvation Army Hub, Northern Territory
Legal Aid Commission, Team HEALTH.
COVID-19 did create unprecedented circumstances
surrounding the collaboration and service delivery
of external agencies and key stakeholders of the
program. COVID-19 limited our service delivery
with other services becoming restricted regarding
their service delivery. KISP have also seen many
clients return to Country or have been cautious of
attending a public settings to seek the services of the
program, taking into consideration of other factors
and circumstances that surrounds the COVID-19
pandemic.
The KISP Coordinator attended the THEMHS
Summer forum - Homelessness, Housing and Mental
Health: Crises and opportunities in February 2020.

6

Supplies for KISP clients.

This provided insight and education with information
that could be utilised to provide clients with tools to
assist and achieve access to housing when in crisis.
The highlight of this forum was Keynote speaker Dr.
Vicky Stergiopoulos who attended the forum from
Canada to explain and inform the attendees of the
Housing First Program accessed by the Indigenous
homeless demographic of Canada. Topics discussed
included Rapid housing with supports, offering
clients’ choice in housing, separating housing
provision from other services, providing tenancy
rights and responsibilities, integrating housing into
the community, strength-based and promoting
self-sufficiency this then allowed the opportunity to
advocate in a positive way for the clients engaging
with KISP given the proven positive outcomes
Dr. Stergiopoulos explained is being achieved in
Canada.
KISP currently have six active pathways for clients to
access the Program.
• Katherine District Hospital
• Salvation Army Hub
• Royal Darwin Hospital (Via RDH discharge
planner)

• Wurli-Wurlinjang GPs
• Wurli-Wurlinjang Community Services/SelfReferral
• Northern Territory Legal Aid (Health Justice
Partnership)
The KISP Team have primarily delivered and been
involved in multiple community engagement events
during the 2019-2020 period. These community
engagements include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

National Reconciliation Week
R U Ok Day
Closing the GAP Presentation to NTPHN
Homelessness, Housing and Mental Health
forum - Sydney Feb 2020
Homelessness Week 2019
Health Promotions Event 2019
Youth Education Sessions YMCA
ATSI Children’s Week
Katherine High School Careers Expo
School holiday program delivery
Binjari, Rockhole, Kalano Community
Engagement
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2.4.4 StrongBala Justice Support Program Report

4

5

6

StrongBala Vision
“To empower Aboriginal men to improve their health, emotional and social
well-being and to make meaningful contributions to their family, their
communities and their culture”.
The StrongBala Program is in its 10th Year of Services
to our Indigenous men of Katherine.
Holistic health, social, housing and access to
counselling support continues to be our main
focus to reduce their recidivism, engagement in
domestic violence assaults, promotion of reduction
of substance abuse impacting on violence as well as
improvements to social and emotional wellbeing for
the individual.
While our priority is to work with men engaged in the
Justice System, we ensure we provide a wraparound
service that also includes Adult Health Checks and
follow up support services for their healthcare.
Education sessions delivered through our 13 week
Personal Development Program (PDP) embeds
the sessions delivered to our men for preventative
measures to reduce recidivism.
Although our Program delivers these services to the
men referred to us through the various avenues of
the justice system, we also ensure we provide services
to all men requesting the support from our program,
these include walk-ins.
The PDP Sessions include sessions on domestic
& family violence, anger management, positive
relationships, AOD, health & hygiene, adult health
checks, sexual health education & screening
sessions, legal updates, nutrition, food preparation,
exercise activities with Wurli’s Exercise Physiologist
and cultural activities such as cultural painting on
Canvas, Boomerangs or Didgeridoo’s. Hand and
hygiene cleanliness and COVID-19 educational
sessions were presented to our clients and the
introduction of Dental hygiene education sessions
by the new Wurli Dentist.

Good News Story—Case Study 1
Client C (C) was referred by North Australian
Aboriginal Justice Agency (NAAJA) whilst in
attendance to the Katherine Court. C was 19 years
old and charged with assault and domestic violence.
On assessment, C was homeless and sleeping
rough with no funds. The program accepted C
and was engaged the following day with support
provided to access Centrelink payments, short term
accommodation within an Aboriginal Hostel and
then into longer term Orman House Men’s Shelter.
C participated in the StrongBala Program daily
and engaged in all aspects of the PDP and support
counselling. Whilst in the program he made
arrangements to return to Country in Queensland
and enrol in University. On acceptance he found
he would be able to finish his schooling. Since
commencement with StrongBala, C expressed he
wanted to make immediate changes in his life then
wanted to return, at some stage, to Katherine to be
with his partner and child.
C continued to participate in the program
until such time as he could enter the University
Accommodation. C has remained in contact while
in Qld, often discussing Uni and his participation in
Koori Rugby Cup.
March 2020 saw the impact COVID-19 brought to
Katherine and surrounding communities. It impacted
on the StrongBala program due to men wanting to
return to Country/community whilst the opportunity
arose when the Biosecurity Act was enforced and
many people were returned to Country during that
period.
Once COVID-19 restrictions where implemented, the
PDP sessions were affected due to the limitations on
gatherings and access to our service/premises. The
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Community Engagement at Rockhole Community

committed visiting presenters delivering education
sessions where bound by their own organisational
polices around social distancing, gatherings and some
having to work from home during the early stages of
the COVID-19 pandemic.
The StrongBala Justice Program had immediate
challenges keeping engaged with our clients either
by telephone or home visits during this period, due
to limited access. Men engaging at StrongBala had
restricted access to the rear of the building, the shed’s
PDP area was utilised as a separate entrance through
a side gate. Social distancing measures, limited
gatherings and hand hygiene practices were put in
place to ensure clients were adhering to the COVID-19
guidelines whilst still participating in their required
sessions.
The following PDP sessions took place during
2019/2020:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adult Health Checks
Relationships Australia Education Sessions
NAAJA Legal Education Team
Family & Violence Awareness Sessions- No
More Campaign - Catholic Care
Catholic Care- No More Program Domestic
Violence Men’s behavioural change
Alcohol & Other Drugs, Methamphetamine &
Cannabis
Healthy Choices - General Health & Hygiene
Social & Emotional Well Being

Men’s PDP session with Registered Aboriginal
Health Practitioner on hand hygiene

• Sexual Health Sexually Transmitted Disease
(incl. Hep C & HIV)
• Financial Management
• Centre Link Income Management Support
• Strong Indigenous Families
• Healthy Eating / Nutrition-Cook up
• North Australian Justice Agency- Updates to
DVO’s, NT Legislation or Law, New Mandatory
sentencing and Laws
• Centre Link Engagement with Justice Clients
• Chronic Disease / Diabetes & Nutritional
Education
Statistics for 2019-2020
• Approximately 130 individual clients accessed
StrongBala over the 12 month period.
• 105 were referred to program
• 2, 237 episodes of care were provided to the
male clients accessing our services
• 1,725 non client contacts/attempted contact
made with clients
• 74 PDP sessions were presented to StrongBala
Justice and walk-in clients (slightly reduced due
to the impact of COVID-19 restrictions).
• 32 clients completed their 13 Week PDP
• There were 57 Case collaborations
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PDP health checks and promotions community engagement with CDP men at Rockhole.

Picking out didjeridoos.

PDP Cultural Sessions – Traditional painting exercises on canvas

Picking out plants to use for brushes for painting.
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2.4.5 Alcohol and Other Drugs (AOD) Program Report

5

6

The last 12 months has seen a great year for the
AOD program as we continue to deliver culturally
appropriate AOD services to the community through
counselling, case management, health promotions
and education sessions.
In September 2019 the AOD program employed
two new Community Engagement Support Officers
(CESO). These school leavers added a young
fresh outlook in the field of AOD. The CESOs hit
the ground running and were straight out into the
community delivering 14 education sessions at local
schools and to add to that YMCA youth groups and
Wurli ran health promotion events.
The Wurli AOD team have built and maintained
a strong working relationship with local schools
including Katherine High School’s Pathways, Stars
and Clontarf groups.
The AOD Counsellor continues to engage and
support local community members though
counselling and support and making significate
changes in the lives of our clients. The Counsellor has
had many successes and continues to strive towards
better futures for her clients.
The AOD Program also had the added benefit of
a COMMIT Counsellor until December 2019. This
Counsellor worked closely with the StrongBala
Justice clients to provide counselling and support
for a range of issues faced by our clients and our
community.
The AOD team have been working in partnership
with the Banatjarl Strongbala Wumin Group,
together an Elder’s day was delivered for community
elders male and female to come together and share
in the making of bush medicine. The Elders also
enjoyed doing art work, sharing stories and being
out and involved with others. Positive feedback was
given from the Elders and they really appreciate it.
In 2018 the AOD team developed a women’s group.
A place where women can come and seek advice,
share stories and learn about different ways of coping
and dealing with stressors. The AOD women’s group

Nick Elliott and Ayesha Kay at the 2020 National
Indigenous Youth Empowerment Summit.

joined up with the Banatjarl Strongbala Wumin
Group to deliver six group sessions around healing,
strengthening and bush medicine. However due to
COVID 19 restrictions this was cancelled but have
since recommenced.
In January 2020, a new Case Manager joined
the AOD team. The Case Manager has added
substance to the AOD team and has worked closely
with the CESOs in the delivery of Health Promotion
and Education sessions. The Case Manager has also
been supporting local men in engaging with AOD/
Wellbeing services both internal and externally.
Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) remains
a focus of the AOD program with NOFASD coming
to Katherine to delivery much needed education on
FASD to both Wurli staff and external providers.
NOFASD ran a full day “Train it forward” this was
attended by five clinical staff members and nine
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Community Services staff members predominately
from AOD and Strong Indigenous Families Program.
Adding to this, NOFASD also ran two four hour
information sessions, one for external providers

Client Contacts AOD Team, 2019/20
Total 253 individuals engaged

Female
106
(42%)

Male
147
(58%)

which was attended by staff from external agencies.
And the other for Wurli staff which was attended by
over 25 staff members.
Wurli has been in the process of establishing its own
assessment clinic for the psychological components
of FASD assessments, alongside the Women’s and
Children’s Clinic, and paediatricians. The final
components of the required tests have been ordered
and are awaiting delivery. Three referrals have been
received for children who have been recommended
for assessment, and these will be the first set of
assessments conducted when the tests arrive.
From 1st July 2019 to 30th June 2020 the AOD staff
have been out working with member of the community
providing support and culturally appropriate
counselling and case management. A total of 253
individuals have engaged with the AOD program
over this period with 147 males and 106 females
Further to this from the 253 individuals there has
been 1,166 episodes of care given by AOD staff.

Phillip Butler with board member Natasha
Bronghur at Rockhole Community.
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2.4.6 Strong Indigenous Families (SIF) Program Report

The SIF team

4

5

6

SIF team during community meetings to discuss healthy relationships.

The 2019-2020 year has been busy for the Strong Indigenous Families program (SIF). Even with
the outbreak of COVID-19, referrals have been increasing, and more than 30 families are currently
engaged with staff in the program.
The SIF team have seen more clients coming to the
program as self-referrals, through recommendations
from family or other services, as well as ongoing
referrals from other Wurli programs and external
agencies.
Throughout the past year, we have continued
to work with families to help increase safety and
decrease violence. Our intensive case management
program has helped families to work towards, and
in some cases achieve, reunification with their
children through Territory Families, and to access
legal support for DVO applications and family law
matters.
We have worked alongside families to increase
their physical health through accessing the Wurli
clinical programs, education through support to
attend boarding schools or access transport to
local schools, employment, and cultural connection
through support for events with the Banatjarl Strong
Wimun’s Group.
Over the year, our counselling staff have worked
with clients to increase their skills in recognising and
managing their emotions, improve confidence and
self-esteem and reduce their experience of mental
health symptoms relating to anxiety, depression and
post-traumatic stress disorder.
Prior to the outbreak of COVID-19, staff from the SIF
team attended community meetings at Geyulkgan

Ngurro and Myalli Brumby to speak about healthy
relationships education sessions, and to gain
community feedback on what they would like to
learn. Unfortunately these were unable to continue
due to COVID restrictions, however with restrictions
now easing our Community Engagement Support
Officer recently presented to community members
at Rockhole and Myalli Brumby communities as part
of a Wurli-wide community education campaign.
We have also been working alongside other Wurli
programs, such as assisting the AOD program with
providing information to students through the Stars
Foundation.
Looking forward into the coming year, SIF is working
with Strongbala Justice to develop a service delivery
model for our funding bodies that, if successful,
would see a significant increase in the capacity of
both programs. Notable features of that expansion
would likely include more opportunities for group and
individual counselling services, increased support
for parenting going through domestic violence and
more streamlined services for whole families.
Although there have been a number of challenges
over the past 12 months, many caused by COVID-19,
the SIF program is enthusiastic about the prospect of
continuing to grow, and to provide further high levels
of professional support for our client families and the
community.
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2.5 Corporate
Services

3
2.5.1 Human Resources and
Learning & Development Report
The Human Resources Team consists of three core positions,
a Human Resources Coordinator, a Human Resources
Officer and a Learning and Development Officer.

Staff at Low Level Nature Park for
staff luncheon, October 2019.

“COVID-19 had a profound
effect on recruitment for
the 2020 year.”
During the July 2019 to June 2020 reporting period
there was the appointment of 29 new employees and
the cessation of 32 employees.
COVID-19 had a profound effect on recruitment for
the 2020 year. When COVID-19 cases started to rise
back in February 2020 we put recruitment on hold
which meant that our vacant positions started to
increase.
For March, April and May we were conducting
limited recruitment and only recruiting from the
Katherine area. This decision was reviewed by the
CEO after three months and our recruitment pool
was broadened to include the NT.
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Interstate recruitment is assessed on a case by case
basis in line with relevant guidelines – identifying
non hot spot geographical areas of risk. Planning is
dependent on the situation at the time.
Professional Development
Traineeships
During the reporting period we have had five Trainee
Aboriginal Health Practitioners work with us. We
had two trainees resign due to personal reasons and
one reinstated as a third year Trainee Aboriginal
Health Practitioner.
Due to COVID-19, our Trainee Aboriginal Health
Practitioners have been able to continue their
studies despite the Batchelor Institute of Indigenous
Tertiary Education (BIITE) being closed during this
time. We have been lucky to have the support from
Management for our Trainees to continue their
studies while BIITE was closed.

Employee % ATSI and Non-ATSI
01 Jul 2019 - 30 Jun 2020

Non-ATSI
Employees
53
(48%)

ATSI
Employees
57
(52%)

Existing and Former employees
for 2019/2020 Year

Employee Summary (note figures exclude Executives)
New Employees
2019/ 2020

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

0

2

4

5

2

3

4

2

3

0

2

June Total
2

29

Resignations/Terminations

2019/ 2020

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

2

5

1

2

2

3

5

0

1

3

2

June Total
6

32

Mandatory training
During this time period we have faced a COVID-19 Pandemic, which changed our way of training from
face to face to online. The Learning and Development Officer has changed her training schedules
to be flexible, scheduling month to month with our managers and staff. She has developed training
calendars with the different area managers.
Session date

CPR

First Aid and CPR

Cultural Awareness Training

Feb-20

15 invited, 10 attended

14 invited, 9 attended

15 Invited, 12 attended

Mar-20

Cancelled due to COVID

16 invited, 6 attended

Cancelled due to COVID

Apr-20

Cancelled cue to COVID

12 invited, 10 attended

Cancelled due to COVID

May-20

Cancelled due to COVID

Cancelled due to COVID

Cancelled due to COVID

Jun-20

23 Invited, 20 attended

Cancelled due to COVID

Cancelled due to COVID
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AMSED Training – Commenced in March 2020.
Aboriginal Medical Service Education – being used to create and foster an organisation culture of continuous
learning and development, flexible and independent learning for all our employees.
We have 95 active employees, who have completed training in PPE, Hand Hygiene, Manual Handling and
Managing Difficult Behaviours. Employees have also been independently going in and doing active learning
and upskilling. This graph shows the courses accessed and completed, and the hours spent doing the courses.
March, April and May have a lot of online learning being accessed due to COVID-19.
eLearning Activity (Monthly)

Training Access by Job Title

400
400
350
350
300
300

Time (hours)

250
250
200
200

Training Access by Profession

150
150
100
100
50
50

00

Feb
2020 Mar
2020 Apr
2020 May
2020 Jun
Jun 2020
2020
Feb 2020
Mar 2020
Apr 2020
May 2020

Jul 2020

Aug 2020

Period

Policies and Procedures
Policy and Procedures were reviewed and created
in response to COVID-19. They were to provide
guidance to operational leaders in key areas of
staff management during COVID-19. The policies
developed included:
• Return to Work and Injury Management Policy
(Including return to work after a pandemic or
natural disaster).
• Working from Home Policy and Procedure.
Wurli also identified vulnerable Wurli staff and
implemented a contingency plan to mitigate risk and
exposure for those staff. The first part of that plan has
already been completed with HR and the relevant staff
and their managers having meetings to discuss:
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• How best the staff members can be protected
during COVID-19,
• Alternative duties identified,
• Alternative location for the staff member to
work from identified (If needed).
Our Criminal History Check policy was also reviewed
and it is now a requirement of employment at Wurli
Wurlinjang that an applicant produce a Criminal
History Check that is not more than three (3) months
old prior to their commencement of work and that
WWHS has the right to conduct a Criminal History
Check after one (1) year of service and every year
thereafter.

Recognition of employee tenure milestones achieved throughout the year
10 - 23 Years’ Service
Full Name

Job Title

Start Date Years of
Service

KELLY, Patrick

Community Liason/Transport Officer

18/09/1997

22

GILLETT, Anne

Community Liason/Transport Officer

22/01/1999

21

ROSAS, Karen

Clinic Co-ordinator

31/03/1999

21

WOODS, Cynthia

Human Resouce Officer

27/10/2003

16

TAKES, Robert

Community Liason/Transport Officer

03/06/2004

16

KING, Sherryl

Registered Aboriginal Health Practioner

05/04/2006

14

GAZEY, Peter

Primary Health Care Systems Manager

27/04/2006

14

COPE, Megan

Senior Medical Officer

16/08/2006

13

WILLIAMS, Alison

Registered Aboriginal Health Practioner

26/02/2007

13

BERTO, Suzi

Chief Executive Officer

12/01/2009

11

McBEAN, Margaret

Family Home Visitor / RN

16/02/2009

11

THOMAS, Eric

StrongBala Justice Co-ordinator

26/10/2009

10

LAFAELE, Debra

Patient Services Team Leader

30/11/2009

10

Full Name

Job Title

Start Date

Years of
Service

ALLWRIGHT, Sandra

Clinic Co-ordinator (Main)

14/02/2011

9

RYAN, Reggie

Binjari Transport Officer/Gardener

27/06/2011

9

GODWIN, Sue

Registered Nurse

07/09/2011

8

McKERRACHER, Andrew Reid General Practioner

12/03/2012

8

LECOUTER, Lisa

Finance Officer

13/03/2012

8

KOSSACK, William

Justice Support Officer

23/04/2012

8

KAY, Karen

Admin Officer

29/01/2013

7

MLILO, Lorraine Mapfumisa

General Practioner

11/02/2013

7

ROSAS, Daniel

Program Co-ordinator SER

25/02/2013

7

KELLY, Lisa

Finance Co-ordinator

07/10/2013

6

BUTLER, Phillip

Program Co-ordinator AOD

16/10/2013

6

BERTO, Camille

Corporate Services Support Officer

05/11/2013

6

STANLEY, Dani

Registered Aboriginal Health Practioner

10/02/2014

6

REID, Jaye

Clinical Administrations Support Officer

24/03/2014

6

PERNER, Heidi

Counsellor

31/03/2014

6

NORTHAM, Gary

Infrastructure, Assets, Security, WHS Manager 18/08/2014

5

5 – 10 Years’ Service
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2.5.2 Infrastructure, Assets, IT, WHS and Security Report

1

New security fencing at Main Clinic.

Gardens and Maintenance Officer
Albert O’Connor.

Over the last 12 months the Assets and Infrastructure team have provided high-quality services,
systems and support to all program areas of the organisation whilst maintaining a strong focus on the
strategic goal of expanding our infrastructure.
The Assets and Infrastructure team framework is
designed to support:
•
•
•
•

accountability
a focus on high standards of performance
risk management
efficient, effective and ethical management
of resources, to better meet the need for
increased health service delivery.
The major project achievements for the year was the
purchase and receipt of a new mobile clinic van and
the construction of the dental clinic building. These
two projects will improve community connectivity
and regular access to primary health care.
A large focus for the year was the planning and
grant applications for the future expansion of the
organisation. These applications became successful
and the projects include construction of a staff car
park, relocation and building of new office spaces
in the Women’s and Children’s precinct, building
of a larger drug storage room and development of
a vehicle turnaround bay at 25 Third St. The 2019-

50

20 period also saw a large number of maintenance
projects being completed including the exterior
painting and floor covering replacement of the Main
Clinic, the installation of CCTV and security systems
at a number of sites and the exterior painting of the
Binjari Top Clinic.
In terms of Work, Health and Safety (WHS), Wurli is
committed to reducing workplace risks and incidents
and the health and safety of board members, clients,
employees, and contractors remains a priority
focus. Over the past year, Wurli has advanced and
maintained a strong reporting system, processes and
structure for all WHS requirements.
Looking ahead to the next financial year, the 2021-22
year will be full of challenges and changes to expand
and upgrade the existing infrastructure footprint
further with a large number of maintenance projects
already approved to proceed. These changes are
sure to further strengthen the organisation as the
leading health service of the Katherine region.

2.5.3 Grants and Contracts Report

6

Grant Management
Securing sufficient financial resources to enable
Wurli’s expanding service delivery footprint and
to support infrastructure expansion has been the
key focus of the organisation’s grant management
efforts during 2019-20.

essential expansion of on-site facilities and upgrades
to many of Wurli’s aged buildings. Notable projects
include our on-site car parking project, bathroom
and kitchen renovations and various security
upgrades.

Wurli retained funding for all programs as we moved
into 2019-20 and was pleased efforts to obtain
further funding for additional service delivery was
successful. As such, the program Tackling Indigenous
Smoking can now be delivered.

Through-out the year, Wurli maintained sound
and transparent working relationships with our key
funding providers and achieved 100 percent funding
agreement compliance by 30th June 2020. Wurli
would like to acknowledge the support provided by
our 2019-20 funding providers and thank them for
their ongoing assistance.

Significant infrastructure funding was also sought
after and awarded during the year which will enable
Funding Provider

Program or Project

Commonwealth Department
of Health

Indigenous Australian Health Program –
Comprehensive Primary Health Care for Wurli and
Binjari

National Indigenous
Australians Agency

Amount (GST Exc.)
$ 5,997,338.00

Indigenous Australian Health Program – Service
Maintenance Program

$ 315,499.18

Indigenous Australian Health Program – Syphilis
Enhanced Response

$ 413,923.80

COVID-19 Indigenous and Remote Community
Preparedness

$ 85,000.00

Indigenous Australian Health Program – Australian
Nurse Family Partnership Program

$ 1,292,155.46

Indigenous Australian Health Program – Emerging
Priorities Program

$ 148,000.00

Indigenous Australian Health Program – Tackling
Indigenous Smoking Remote Priority Group

$ 540,000.00

Alcohol and Other Drugs Management Program

$ 288,579.00

StrongBala Justice Support Project

$ 728,250.00

Aboriginal Benefit Account – Infrastructure
Expansion Project

$ 368,224.00

Strong Indigenous Families

$ 975,000.00

Fourth Action Plan Co-Design
Social and Emotional Wellbeing

$ 50,000.00
$ 554,053.00
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Commonwealth Department
of Industry Innovation and
Science

Building Better Regions Fund – Oral Health
Infrastructure Project

Northern Territory
Government Department of
Health

Comprehensive Primary Health Care Program for
Wurli
Sexual Health and Blood Borne Viruses
Remote Alcohol and Other Drugs Workforce

Northern Territory
Government – Various other
Departments

$ 893,835.00
$ 69,814.50
$ 300,000.00

Remote Health Grants – Binjari Health Service

$ 48,470.00

Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Regional Activity
Coordination

$ 80,000.00

Katherine Individual Support Program
COMMIT Alcohol and Other Drugs Counselling

$ 550,000.00
$ 77,111.27

Regional Youth Services Program – School Holidays

$ 2,200.00

Senior’s Month Grant

$ 2,000.00

International Women’s Day

$ 1,000.00

The Fred Hollows Foundation Remote Australia Eye Health Program
Northern Territory Primary
Health Network

$261,161.00

Integrated Team Care Program

Fi

$ 434,687.18

Fo

Outreach Health Services Program

$ 280,295.00

After Hours Program

$ 371,386.08

Social and Emotional Wellbeing Program

$ 177,735.00

Mental Health Services in Rural and Remote
Australia

$ 71,342.00

As a health service operating in a remote location, Wurli is required to
source skills from other local service providers. During 2019-20, an array
of organisations provided various contracted services to Wurli including
infrastructure and asset cleaning and security services, specialist and
allied health services as well as other professional support services.
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96

$ 100,000.00

Contract Management

Grants and Contracts
Coordinator, Hilary Sinfield

W
C

To ensure value for money and a high standard for service is achieved
through these contracting arrangements, an internal audit into our
contract management processes was conducted late in the financial
year. Several improvement areas were identified and we look forward to
implementing the quality improvements in 2020-21.

3. Finance
Report
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Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation
96 997 270 879

Directors' Report
30 June 2020

The directors present their report on Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.
1.

General information
Information on directors
The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:
Director Since
Member Since Community
Qualifications/Experience
Michael Murrimal
22/8/2019 to date
18/10/2018
Binjari
Community Representative
Noel McDonald
1/7/2010 to date
22/10/1997
Mialli Brumby
Community Representative
Francis Hayes
1/7/2010 to 13/11/2019 20/3/2010
Katherine Town
Community Representative
Evonne Booth
22/8/2019 to date
22/8/2019
Binjari
Community Representative
Junaita Heparia
21/11/2018 to date
18/8/2000
Mialli Brumby
Community Representative
Jason Brown
21/11/18 to date
5/11/2012
Rockhole
Community Representative
Ruby Stanley
1/7/2010 to date
26/9/2007
Katherine Town
Community Representative
Barbara Berto
21/2/2020 to date
21/2/2020
Katherine Town
Community Representative
Lisa Mumbin
1/7/2010 to date
16/8/2000
Mialli Brumby
Community Representative
May Rosas
1/7/2010 to date
22/10/1997
Katherine Town
Community Representative
Pauline Marapunya
14/11/2012 to date
22/10/1997
Rockhole
Community Representative
Marie Dowling
14/11/2012 to date
22/10/1997
Katherine Town
Community Representative
Gary Manbulloo
3/12/2013 to date
22/10/1997
Mialli Brumby
Community Representative
Natasha Bronghur
14/11/2012 to date
28/10/2009
Rockhole
Community Representative
Melissa Rogers
20/8/2014 to date
15/10/2008
Rockhole
Community Representative
Maylene Frederick
22/8/2017 to 23/8/2019 22/8/2017
Jodetluk
Community Representative
Frank Douglas
22/8/2017 to 23/8/2019 22/8/2017
Geyulkgan Ngurro Community Representative
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
Operating result
The surplus of the Corporation for the year was $4,567,430 (2019: $1,306,526).
Principal activities
The principal activity of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation during the financial year was that of providing high
quality and progressive health service to the community of Katherine, Northern Territory of Australia, that is culturally
appropriate for indigenous Australians.
No significant changes in the nature of the Corporation's activity occurred during the financial year.
Distribution to Members
No distribution were paid to members during the financial year. The Corporation is a public benevolent institution and is
exempt from income tax. This tax status prevents any distributions to members. The Corporation's rule book does not
permit distributions to members.
Changes in state of affairs
There was no significant change in the state of affairs during the financial year.
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Auditors Independence Declaration to the Directors of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation
In relation to our audit of the financial report of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation for the financial
year ended 30 June 2020, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions
of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander)
Act 2006 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Merit Partners

Matthew Kennon
Partner
DARWIN
Date: 3 November 2020
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020
Revenue
Investment income
Other gains and losses
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Medical supplies and services
Motor Vehicle expenses
Other expenses

Note
5

6(a)

6(b)

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

2019

$
18,888,351
30,546
233,359
(10,911,381)
(810,965)
(695,300)
(155,314)
(2,011,866)

$
17,343,738
36,113
(14,638)
(11,137,968)
(389,954)
(1,164,078)
(182,400)
(3,184,287)

4,567,430

1,306,526

-

-

4,567,430

1,306,526

The Corporation has initially applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated
comparatives. The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 111, AASB 118, AASB 1004 and related interpretations.
The Corporation has initially applied AASB 16 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives. The
comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117 and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2020

Note
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other assets

7
8
9
12

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

11
13

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits

14
10
13
15

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits

13
15

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulated funds
TOTAL EQUITY

2020

2019

$

$

13,276,605
55,827
1,086,439
40,996

9,277,004
16,809
1,067,872
34,495

14,459,867

10,396,180

5,421,971
581,479

4,897,000
-

6,003,450

4,897,000

20,463,317

15,293,180

879,749
612,625
335,413
1,252,342

1,510,350
1,084,512

3,080,129

2,594,862

251,863
292,061

247,025

543,924

247,025

3,624,053

2,841,887

16,839,264

12,451,293

16,839,264

12,451,293

16,839,264

12,451,293

The Corporation has initially applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated
comparatives. The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 111, AASB 118, AASB 1004 and related interpretations.
The Corporation has initially applied AASB 16 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives. The
comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117 and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
2020
Accumulated
Funds
$
Balance at 1 July 2019
Change in accounting policy to reflect the adoption of
AASB 15 and AASB 1058

12,451,293

Balance at 1 July 2019 restated
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income

12,271,834
4,567,430
-

Balance at 30 June 2020

16,839,264

(179,459)

2019
Accumulated
Funds
$
Balance at 1 July 2018
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income

11,144,767
1,306,526
-

Balance at 30 June 2019

12,451,293

The Corporation has initially applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated
comparatives. The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 111, AASB 118, AASB 1004 and related interpretations.
The Corporation has initially applied AASB 16 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives. The
comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117 and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

2019

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Receipts from grants
Repayments on unspent grants
Interest received

3,556,383
(14,093,151)
15,714,064
(92,894)
11,979

3,090,265
(16,252,249)
15,358,989
(829,317)
14,554

5,096,381

1,382,242

(1,012,093)
280,726

(878,171)
-

(731,367)

(878,171)

(365,413)

-

(365,413)

-

Net increase in cash held

3,999,601

504,071

Cash and cash equivalents held at the beginning of the year

9,277,004

8,772,933

13,276,605

9,277,004

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

21

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

7

The Corporation has initially applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated
comparatives. The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 111, AASB 118, AASB 1004 and related interpretations.
The Corporation has initially applied AASB 16 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated comparatives. The
comparatives have been prepared using AASB 117 and related interpretations.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The financial report covers Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation as an individual entity. Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal
Corporation is incorporated under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 (CATSI Act).
The Corporation is a not-for-profit organisation registered with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission.
The principal place of business is 25 Third Street, Katherine, NT 0850.
The functional and presentation currency of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation is Australian dollars.
Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.
1

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006.
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

2

Change in Accounting Policy
Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058
The Corporation has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of
Not-for-Profit Entities for the first time in the current year with a date of initial application of 1 July 2019.
The Corporation has applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the cumulative effect method which means the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 111, AASB 118, AASB 1004
and related interpretations. All adjustments on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained
earnings at 1 July 2019.
The key changes to the Corporation's accounting policies and the impact on these financial statements from applying
AASB 15 and AASB 1058 are described below.
Grants - capital
Under AASB 1004, most grant monies were recorded as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058, where the Corporation
has received assets (including cash) to acquire or construct a non-financial asset, the asset is to be controlled by the
Corporation and there is a refund liability if the terms and conditions of the grant are not met then the asset is
recognised as a contract liability on receipt and recorded as revenue as the performance obligation to acquire or
construct the asset is completed.
This has resulted in a deferral of revenue and recognition of a contract liability for funds which have not been spent at
reporting date.
Comparison of financial statement line items under AASB 15 compared to previous standards for the current
year
The following table shows the impact of adopting AASB 15 on the Corporation's financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2020.

10
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue
Contract liabilities

AASB 15/1058
$

AASB 1004
$

18,888,351

19,321,517

612,625

-

Leases - Adoption of AASB 16
The Corporation has adopted AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method from 1
July 2019 and therefore the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and has
been prepared in accordance with AASB 117 Leases and associated Accounting Interpretations.
Impact of adoption of AASB 16
The impact of adopting AASB 16 is described below:
Corporation as a lessee
Under AASB 117, the Corporation assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases based on its assessment
of whether the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the Corporation or remained with the
lessor. Under AASB 16, there is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all
leases which meet the definition of a lease are recognised on the statement of financial position (except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets).
The Corporation has elected to use the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, and the lease expense relating to these leases are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis.
Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16
The Corporation has recognised right-of-use assets of $654,693 and lease liabilities of $654,693 at 1 July 2019, for
leases previously classified as operating leases. The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 was 4%.

The lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of 30 June 2019 as
follows:
$
Balance as at 30 June 2019
Additional leases captured under AASB 16
Lease liabilities 1 July 2019

557,575
97,118
654,693
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3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Revenue and other income
For comparative year
Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Corporation and specific criteria relating to the type of
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of
returns, discounts and rebates.
For current year
The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Corporation expects to receive
in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:
1. Identify the contract with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligations
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred
Generally the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds closely to the timing
of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a difference, it will result in the recognition
of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability.
None of the revenue streams of the Corporation have any significant financing terms as there is less than 12
months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations.
The revenue recognition policies for the principal revenue streams of the Corporation are:
Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of income and expenditure when controlled. Where binding
conditions, or specific milestones, exist relating to the specific purpose for which the grant funds may be applied,
grant revenues are recognised in the balance sheet as a liability until such time that all conditions of the grant
are met.
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets. Interest revenue comprises interest received and is recognised as it accrues.
Revenue from the sale of goods or services is recognised at the point of delivery of goods or services to
patients.
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Corporation is entitled to it.
12

65

Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation
96 997 270 879

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

(b)

Income Tax
The Corporation is a charitable institution for the purposes of Australia taxation legislation and is therefore
exempt from income tax. The Corporation holds deductible gift recipient status and is a public benevolent
institution.

(c)

Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.
Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment.
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
useful life to the Corporation, commencing when the asset is ready for use.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:
Class of non-current Asset
Depreciation Rate
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Fittings
Motor Vehicles

2.5%
20 - 25%
10 – 100%
20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an items of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.
(e)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Corporation becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).
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Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Classification
On initial recognition, the Corporation classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured
at:


amortised cost



fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL



fair value through other comprehensive income - FVOCI

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Corporation changes its
business model for managing financial assets.
Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:


the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and



the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Corporation's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less provision for impairment.
Interest income and impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets through profit or loss
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income as described above are measured at FVTPL.
Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.
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The Corporation uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant
increase in credit risk.
The Corporation uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:


the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Corporation in full, without recourse to the
Corporation to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or



the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the
Corporation in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a
probability weighted approach.
Trade receivables
Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an
estimation of lifetime expected credit losses. The Corporation has determined the probability of non-payment of
the receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.
The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in
expenses. Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is written off
against the associated allowance.
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the expected credit loss
model in AASB 9. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12
months is recognised. Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime
losses are estimated and recognised.
Financial liabilities
The Corporation measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The financial liabilities of the Corporation comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and lease liabilities.
(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period the Corporation determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.
Where an indicator exists and regardless for indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.
Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit (CGU) is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in
use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or
cash-generating unit.
15
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Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment loss.
(g)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(h)

Leases
For comparative year
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are
charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.
For current year
At inception of a contract, the Corporation assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
This involves an assessment of whether:


The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be explicitly or implicitly identified within the
agreement. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then there is no identified asset.



The Corporation has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset
throughout the period of use.



The Corporation has the right to direct the use of the asset i.e. decision-making rights in relation to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Lessee accounting
The non-lease components included in the lease agreement have been separated and are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
At the lease commencement, the Corporation recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for
the lease term. The lease term includes extension periods where the Corporation believes it is reasonably
certain that the option will be exercised.
The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of the lease
liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration less any lease
incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in
accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be
readily determined then the Corporation's incremental borrowing rate is used.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the lease
term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI) or a change in the Corporation's assessment
of lease term.
Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the remeasurement or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
Exceptions to lease accounting
The Corporation has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases
with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. The Corporation recognises the
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(i)

Employee benefits
Provision is made for the Corporation's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.
Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality
corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

(j)

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations
The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods. The Corporation has decided not to early adopt these Standards
and does not expect these new and amending standards to have a material impact on the Corporation.

4

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.
These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.
The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Corporation assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Corporation that may be indicative of impairment triggers.
Useful life of assets
The Corporation assesses the useful life of assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
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5

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue
- Grants
- Medicare revenue
- Immunisation and other HIC income
- NT general practice education reimbursements
- Other revenue

6

2020

2019

$

$

15,280,898
1,875,856
598,457
651,230
481,910

14,326,842
1,619,146
636,709
598,708
162,333

18,888,351

17,343,738

Result for the Year
The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

(a) Employee benefits expense
Post employment benefits
Other employee benefits

2020

2019

$

$

828,405
10,082,976

843,578
10,294,389

10,911,381

11,137,967

12,052

1,332

Cleaning, rubbish removal & waste disposal

302,932

258,978

IT support

458,394

528,492

Rates and rents

128,912

504,078

92,894

653,344

(b) Other expenses
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables

Unspent funds repaid

72,343

142,368

Utilities

132,415

143,850

Insurance

142,347

119,968

Security

167,243

144,027

Travel and training costs

134,203

183,255

Telephone, fax and postage

161,314

141,013

Repairs and maintenance

7

Professional fees

82,824

78,020

All other expenses

123,993

285,562

2,011,866

3,184,287

2020

2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

$
13,276,605

$
9,277,004

13,276,605

9,277,0054
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8

Trade and other receivables

CURRENT
Trade and other receivables
Provision for impairment
Total current trade and other receivables
9

10

Other Financial Assets

2020

2019

$

$

67,879
(12,052)

19,362
(2,553)

55,827

16,809

2020

2019

$

$

CURRENT
Other financial assets

1,086,439

1,067,872

Total

1,086,439

1,067,872

Contract Liabilities
The Corporation has recognised the following contract liabilities from contracts with funding providers:

Note
CURRENT
Unearned revenue

2020

2019

$

$

612,625

-

The Corporation has initially applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058 using the cumulative effect method and has not restated
comparatives. The comparatives have been prepared using AASB 1004, 111, AASB 118 and related interpretations.
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11

Property, plant and equipment
Land
Freehold Land - at cost
Buildings
Buildings - at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment - at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Binjari plant and equipment - at cost
Accumulated depreciation

150,000

150,000

150,000

150,000

5,891,195
(1,783,267)

5,653,092
(1,639,385)

4,107,928

4,013,707

1,789,647
(1,570,532)
87,907
(84,978)

1,773,148
(1,552,649)
124,132
(119,400)

222,044

225,231

312,439
(293,862)
93,434
(93,434)

401,854
(384,872)
94,252
(94,252)

18,577

16,982

1,376,636
(523,011)
104,776
(34,979)

1,354,843
(892,810)
126,993
(97,946)

923,422

491,080

5,421,971

4,897,000

Furniture and fittings
Furniture and fittings - at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Binjari furniture and fittings - at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Motor Vehicles
Motor Vehicles - at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Binjari motor vehicles - at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total property, plant and equipment
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150,000
-

150,000

150,000
-

150,000

Balance at the end of the year

Year ended 30 June 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Balance at the end of the year
4,107,928

4,013,707
238,101
(143,880)

4,013,707

3,632,869
514,494
(133,656)

$

$

Year ended 30 June 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Buildings

Land

219,115

220,499
81,934
(142)
(83,176)

220,499

18,577

16,982
6,931
(5,336)

16,982

11,860
10,694
(5,572)

$

$
136,799
168,459
(14,639)
(70,120)

Furniture &
fittings

Plant &
equipment

853,625

462,033
604,937
(25,636)
(187,709)

462,033

443,827
180,311
(162,105)

$

Motor
Vehicles

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:

Movements in carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
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$

2,929

4,732
(1,803)

4,732

1,656
4,213
(1,137)

Binjari plant &
equipment

$

0

-

-

39
(39)

Binjari
furniture &
fittings

69,797

29,047
80,190
(21,589)
(17,851)

29,047

46,373
(17,326)

$

Binjari Motor
vehicles

5,421,971

4,897,000
1,012,093
(47,367)
(439,755)

4,897,000

4,423,423
878,171
(14,639)
(389,955)

$

Total

Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation
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Other Assets

CURRENT
Prepayments
13

2020

2019

$

$

40,996

34,495

Leases
The Corporation has applied AASB 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related
Interpretations.
Corporation as a lessee
The Corporation has leases over a range of assets including land and buildings and IT equipment. Information relating
to the leases in place and associated balances and transactions are provided below.
Terms and conditions of leases
The Corporation leases buildings; the leases are generally between 2 - 4 years. The Corporation also leases a number
of photocopiers and the lease for these items is 3 year long.
Right-of-use assets

Buildings

IT equipment

Total

$

$

$

Year ended 30 June 2020
Balance at beginning of the year
Additional leases
Amortisation

654,693
(280,155)

297,996
(91,055)

654,693
297,996
(371,210)

Balance at the end of the year

373,544

207,935

581,479
2020

2019

Lease liabilities

$

$

Current

335,413

-

Non-current

251,863

-

587,276

-

105,040

-

Other short term and low value leases payments:
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Trade and Other Payables

CURRENT
Trade payables
Accruals
Goods and services tax payable

15

Employee Benefits

Current
Annual leave
Long service leave

2020

2019

$

$

359,371
210,972
309,406

746,232
551,718
212,400

879,749

1,510,350

2020

2019

$

$

935,223
317,119

813,758
270,754

1,252,342

1,084,512

292,061

247,025

292,061

247,025

Non-current
Long service leave

16

Financial Risk Management
The Corporation is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments.
The Corporation‘s overall risk management plan seeks to minimise potential adverse effects due to the unpredictability
of financial markets.
The most significant financial risks to which the Corporation is exposed to are described below:
Specific risks

Liquidity risk

Credit risk

Market risk - currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk
Financial instruments used
The principal categories of financial instrument used by the Corporation are:

Trade receivables

Cash at bank

Term deposits

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

23
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposits
Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

2020

2019

$

$

13,276,605
1,086,439
55,827

9,277,004
1,067,872
16,809

14,418,871

10,361,685

570,344
587,276

1,297,951
-

1,157,620

1,297,951

Financial risk management objectives
The Corporation's directors are responsible for, among other issues, monitoring and managing financial risk exposures
of the Corporation. The directors monitor the Corporation's transactions and review the effectiveness of controls relating
to credit risk, financial risk, and interest rate risk. Discussions on monitoring and managing financial risk exposures are
held bi-monthly and are minuted.
The Corporation's directors overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the Corporation meets its financial
targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects of cash flow shortfalls.
Specific financial risk exposures and management
The main risks the Corporation is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
Interest rate risk
The Corporation’s exposure to interest rate risk is not considered to be significant and is limited to variable rate
exposure on cash at bank and term deposit. 0.1% change in interest rates will have an impact on profit or loss of the
entity by $14,363 (2019: $10,345).
Foreign exchange risk
The Corporation is not exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies.
Credit risk
The Corporations exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at balance date is equivalent to the
carrying value and classification of those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of
financial position. The Corporation has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single or group of
counterparties.
There is no collateral held by the Corporation securing trade and other receivables.
Price risk
Price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices of securities held being available-for-sale or fair value through profit and loss. The
24
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Corporation’s exposure to price risk is not considered significant.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Corporation might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise
meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Corporation manages this risk through the following
mechanisms:
- preparing forward-looking financial reports in relation to its operational, investing and financing activities;
- only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and
- proactively monitoring the recovery of unpaid trade and other receivables.
The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities and non-derivative financial
assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the
Corporation’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect managements expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual timing
may therefore differ from that disclosed.
Financial liability and financial assets maturity analysis
Within 1 year
2020
$
Financial liabilities due for payment

1 to 5 years

2019
$

2020
$

Total

2019
$

2020
$

2019
$

570,343

1,297,591

-

-

570,344

1,297,591

Lease liabilities

335,413

-

251,863

-

587,276

-

Total contractual outflows

905,756

1,297,591

251,863

-

1,157,620

1,297,591

13,276,605

9,277,004

-

-

13,276,605

9,277,004

55,827

16,809

-

-

55,827

16,809

1,086,439

1,067,872

-

-

1,086,439

1,067,872

Total anticipated inflows

14,418,871

10,361,685

-

-

14,418,871

10,361,685

Net (outflow)/inflow on financial instruments

13,513,115

9,064,094

(251,863)

-

13,261,251

9,064,094

Trade and other payables

Financial assets - cash flows realisable
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Term deposits

Fair value of financial instruments
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.
17

Economic Dependence
During the year the Corporation received grants from government departments and the future operation of the
Corporation is dependent upon continued funding from the government departments. The Corporation’s primary health
care operations are supported by grants from federal, state and local governments.
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Key Management Personnel Remuneration
The totals of remuneration paid to the key management personnel of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation during the
year are as follows:
2020
2019
Short-term employee benefits
Long-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

19

$
922,351
20,130
81,293

$
978,293
106,623

1,023,774

913,895

Contingencies
In the opinion of the Directors, the Corporation did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2020 (30 June 2019:None).

20

Related Parties
During the year ended 30 June 2020, Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation paid directors fees and travel allowances
to its board of directors who attended meetings for and on behalf of the Corporation.
2020
2019
$
Director fees (i)
Travel allowances (ii)

$
34,000
2,720

54,625
2,510

36,720

57,135

(i) Directors are paid $250 when attending a board meeting. If it is a multi-day meeting they are paid $250 per day.
(ii) Directors are paid reasonable domestic travel and meal allowances in accordance with Taxation Determination TD
2015/14.
There has been no other related party transactions during the year which include close family members of key
management personnel and entities that are controlled or significantly influenced by those key management personnel
or their close family members.
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Cash Flow Information
Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

2020

2019

$
4,567,430

$
1,306,526

Non-cash flows in profit:
- Depreciation
- Amortisation
- Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
- Adjustment for AASB 1058

439,755
371,210
(233,359)
(179,459)

389,954
14,638
-

Changes in assets and liabilities:
- (Increase) in trade and other receivables
- (Increase) in other financial assets
- (Increase)/Decrease in other assets
- Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
- Increase in employee benefits
- Increase in contract liabilities
- (Decrease) in other liabilities

(39,018)
(18,567)
(6,501)
(630,601)
212,866
612,625
-

(1,405)
(21,560)
6,463
33,539
194,182
(540,098)

Net cash flows from operating activities

5,096,381

57,135

Profit for the year

22

Events after the end of the Reporting Period
The financial report was authorised for issue on 3 November 2020 by the Board of Directors.
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Corporation, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Corporation in future financial years.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation (the “Corporation”)
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of profit and loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration.
In our opinion:
(a) the financial report of Wurli-Wurlinjang Aboriginal Corporation gives a true and fair view of the
entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its financial performance for the year then
ended in accordance with the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 and
its Regulations and Australian Accounting Standards;
(b) we have been given all information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of
the audit;
(c) the Corporation has kept financial records sufficient to enable the financial report to be prepared
and audited; and
(d) the Corporation has kept other records and registers as required by the Corporations (Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report
The Directors of the Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations (Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, Directors are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Corporation or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
▪

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

▪

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

▪

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Directors.

▪

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

▪

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Merit Partners

Matthew Kennon
Partner
DARWIN
Date: 3 November 2020
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WURLI WURLINJANG HEALTH SERVICE
Phone: 08 8972 9100
FreeCall: 1800 987 547
Email: wurli@wurli.org.au
Website: www.wurli.org.au
Postal: PO Box 896,
Katherine NT 0851

